### **Table of Contents**

Section	<u>n</u>	Page					
I.	Background and Purpose	2					
II.	Program	2					
III.							
	A. Applicability to Faculty/Staff and Consequences for	2					
Violati	ons						
	B. Applicability to Students and Consequences for Violations	3					
	C. Applicability to Other Members of the University Community	6					
	and Consequences for						
	Violations						
IV.	Getting Help: Drug and Alcohol Programs	7					
	A. Faculty or Staff Members	7					
	B. Students	7					
	C. Other Outside Sources for Faculty, Staff and Students	7					
V.	Appendices	8					
	A. University Alcoholic Beverage Policy	8					
	B. University Medical Marijuana Policy	10					
	C. Health Risks	10					
	1. Alcohol: Effects	10					
	2. Drugs and Abuse/ Uses and Effects	11					
	D. Legal Sanctions	15					
	1. Federal Penalties and Sanctions for Illegal Possession	15					
of a Co	ontrolled Substance						
	2. Federal Trafficking Penalties	16					
	3. California Laws Related to Unlawful Manufacture,	18					
Distrib	ution, Dispensation, Possession, or Use of Controlled Substances						

or Alcohol

# I. BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

Santa Clara University is committed to protecting the safety, health and well being of all faculty, staff and students as well as other individuals in the University community. The University recognizes that alcohol abuse and drug use poses a significant threat to our community and our mission as a University. In accordance with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 (California), and the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act Amendments of 1989, the University has established the following program and distributes information related to this program on an annual basis to all faculty, staff and students.

# II. PROGRAM

It is the goal of Santa Clara University to maintain a drug-free workplace and campus. The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, and/or use of controlled substances or the unlawful possession, use, or distribution of alcohol is prohibited on the Santa Clara University campus, in the workplace, or as part of any of the University's activities. This includes the unlawful use of controlled substances or alcohol in the workplace even if it does not result in impaired job performance or in unacceptable conduct.

The unlawful presence of any controlled substance or alcohol in the workplace and campus itself is prohibited. The workplace and campus are presumed to include all Santa Clara premises where the activities of the University are conducted.

Violations will result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment for faculty and staff, or expulsion of students. Disciplinary processes outlined in the Faculty Handbook, Staff Policy Manual and Student Handbook, will be followed as appropriate. A disciplinary action may also include the completion of an appropriate rehabilitation program. Violations may also be referred to the appropriate law enforcement authorities for prosecution.

The program information contained here is distributed on an annual basis to all faculty, staff and students. New staff employees are given a copy in New Employee Orientation. New faculty employees are given a copy at New Faculty Orientation. The program is reviewed at least biennially by the Office of Student Life, the Provost's Office, the Sponsored Projects Office, the Affirmative Action Office, the Financial Aid Office and the Department of Human Resources.

# III. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS

# A. APPLICABILITY TO FACULTY/STAFF AND CONSEQUENCES FOR VIOLATIONS

As a condition of employment, all Santa Clara faculty and staff, including temporary, fixed-term, and student employees, must abide by this program and University Staff Manual Policy 703. This program recognizes that employee involvement with alcohol and other drugs can be very

disruptive, adversely affect the quality of work and performance of employees, pose serious health risks to users and others, and have a negative impact on productivity and morale.

Employees who unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use controlled substances or unlawfully use, possess, or distribute alcohol in the workplace, on the campus, or as part of any University activity will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination from employment. In addition to corrective or disciplinary action, the University may also require the employee to participate in and satisfactorily complete an approved drug-abuse assistance or treatment program.

An employee who is convicted or pleads *nolo contendere* (no contest plea) of a criminal drug statute violation occurring in the workplace must notify Santa Clara University within five (5) days of such conviction by informing the Provost's Office and the Department of Human Resources. In accordance with state and federal law, the University will notify federal contracting agencies of such convictions where appropriate. Failure to notify the University of a conviction may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Employees and supervisors have a shared responsibility for adhering to and effectively implementing and enforcing the above-referenced standards of conduct. Supervisors must be alert to indications or evidence of the unlawful use or presence of controlled substances or alcohol in the workplace and are expected to reinforce this program with their employees. If a faculty, staff, or student employee is suspected of violating this program, the supervisor should consult with the Provost's Office or the Department of Human Resources, as appropriate, regarding the appropriate next steps.

In addition, employees who perform work under a federal or state grant are required to abide by this program. Please contact the Sponsored Projects Office with any questions regarding this requirement.

# B. APPLICABILITY TO STUDENTS AND CONSEQUENCES FOR VIOLATIONS

The Student Conduct Code prohibits the illegal use, possession, or distribution of drugs and the use or possession of equipment, products, or material that is used or intended for use in manufacturing, growing, using, or distribution of any drug or controlled substance. The Student Conduct Code also prohibits possession, consumption, sale, or action under the influence of alcoholic beverages by persons under the age of 21; furnishing alcoholic beverages to persons under the age of 21; consumption of alcoholic beverages in a public place (all areas other than individual residences, private offices, and scheduled private functions); excessive and inappropriate use of alcoholic beverages.

Students who violate the above sections of the Student Conduct Code in the workplace, on the campus, or as part of any University activity may be subject to sanctions in accordance with the following guidelines. These guidelines are a <u>minimum standard</u>. Accordingly, a hearing officer can choose to administer a more severe sanction if it is determined there is reason to escalate the

sanction due to the severity of the violation, or if the student has a previous judicial record that does not include alcohol or other drug offenses. For instance, housing contract cancellation can be assigned on the first or second offense if the violation is coupled with physical confrontation, vandalism, or another serious conduct code violation. If deemed necessary, the University reserves the right to mandate alcohol and other drug assessment or treatment through the University judicial process.

The Counseling and Psychological Services, Cowell Health Center, and the Wellness Center are available to students who have concerns about their own alcohol or other drug use. The Counseling and Psychological Services and Cowell Health Center staff can also refer students to outside counseling and treatment agencies.

### **Cumulative Nature of Student Conduct Code Violations**

Sanctioning for a Student Conduct Code violation is based upon the nature of the determined violation and any previous violations of the Student Conduct Code.

If 18 months from the date of the previous alcohol violation passes without the student committing an alcohol or other drug violation, then the sanction for an additional alcohol or other drug violation will be in the same category as the previous offense. For example, a student who commits his/her second alcohol violation in October of his/her freshmen year and then commits a third alcohol violation during May of his/her junior year, the offense will be considered a second offense. It will not be considered a third offense unless the violation is serious enough to warrant such action.

Any student with an alcohol violation prior to the implementation of this program on January 7, 2007 will be considered not to have such a violation on his/her judicial record for the purposes of determining the student's sanction. This exception is not applicable to any student who is currently on housing contract probation, disciplinary probation, deferred suspension, or suspension. The exception is not applicable to other drug violations.

#### Low-Risk vs. High-Risk Drinking Violations

Regardless of a student's age, the University takes into consideration the degree of risk or actual harm done to the person, other individuals, and property or severity of the violation when considering the appropriate sanction to assign to a student who violated the Student Conduct Code. Students who commit an alcohol violation because they are in the presence of alcohol whereas University policy states they cannot be in the presence and can be reasonably assumed not to be drinking alcohol or under the influence of alcohol are considered to have committed a low-risk violation.

An alcohol violation is considered to be a high-risk violation in the following circumstances, but not limited to: possession or consumption of alcohol when under the legal drinking age, disorderly conduct such as verbally abusive or lewd behavior, excessive consumption of alcohol (i.e. alcohol shots, beer bongs, drinking games, etc.), excessive intoxication, medical attention due to the use of alcohol, providing alcohol to a person under the legal drinking age, driving a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, or assaults of any type.

It is up to the discretion of the University Hearing Officer to determine if an alcohol violation is considered a low-risk or high-risk violation.

### **Minimum Sanctions for Low-Risk Alcohol Violations**

First Violation	1.	University Fine: \$50.00
Second Violation	1.	University Fine: \$75.00
	2.	Sanctions will be assigned at the discretion of the Hearing Officer
		and will reflect the fact that this is a second alcohol violation. If
		appropriate, the violation may be classified as a high-risk violation
		by the Hearing Officer.
Third Violation	1	The violation will be classified as a high-risk violation

Third Violation 1. The violation will be classified as a high-risk violation.

### **Minimum Sanctions for High-Risk Alcohol Violations**

Einet Minletien	1 Educational Constitutions in shade, but one and limited to a
First Violation	1. Educational Sanction: options include, but are not limited to, a
	paper, community program, contributed work hours1[1], community
	service, alcohol education class or program.
	2. University Fine: \$50.00
	3. Parental Notification (for any student under the age of 21)
Second Violation	1. Educational Sanction: options include, but are not limited to, a
	paper, community program, contributed work hours, community
	service, alcohol education class or program. The degree of work
	and time on the behalf of the student to complete this portion of the
	sanction will reflect the fact that this is a second alcohol violation.
	2. University Fine: \$75.00
	3. Parental Notification (for any student under the age of 21)
	4. Housing Contract Probation (on campus students)
Third Violation	1. Housing Contract Cancellation (on campus students)
	2. Disciplinary Probation
	3. University Fine: \$100.00
	4. Parental Notification (for any student under the age of 21)
Fourth Violation	Any subsequent violation will result in either an extension of the student's
	disciplinary probation period, deferred suspension, suspension, or expulsion
	depending upon the nature of the incident and the student's overall judicial
	record.

### **Kegs and Excessive Amounts of Alcohol**

Any student who is in the presence or possession of a keg or an excessive amount of alcohol is subject to housing contract probation, a University fine not to exceed \$500, and parental notification. An excessive amount of alcohol is an amount that is too great to be reasonable or acceptable for individual consumption in the context of the incident report details.

<sup>1[1]</sup> Contributed work hours are assigned work through the SCU Facilities Department.

### Police Action Related to Alcohol and Other Drug Violations

If a student is cited for serving alcohol to a person under the legal drinking age, taken into protective custody, or arrested by the Santa Clara Police Department or a similar law enforcement agency for an alcohol or other drug related violation, then the minimum sanctions below will be administered.

- First Violation 1. Disciplinary Probation
  - 2. University Fine: \$100.00
  - 3. Parental Notification (for any student under the age of 21)

Second Violation Any subsequent violation will result in either an extension of the student's disciplinary probation period, deferred suspension, suspension, or expulsion depending upon the nature of the incident and the student's overall judicial record.

### **Minimum Sanctions for Other Drug Violations**

First Violation	1.	Educational Sanction: options include, but are not limited to, a paper, community program, contributed work hours, community service, other drug education class or program.
	2.	University Fine: \$100.00
	3.	Housing Contract Probation (on campus students)
	4.	Parental Notification (for any student under the age of 21)
Second Violation	1.	Educational Sanction: options include, but are not limited to a paper, community program, contributed work hours, community service, other drug education class or program. The degree of work and time on the behalf of the student to complete this portion of the sanction will reflect the fact that this is a second other drug violation.
	2.	University Fine: \$200.00
	3.	Housing Contract Cancellation (on campus students)
	4.	Disciplinary Probation
	5.	Parental Notification (for any student under the age of 21)

### Minimum Sanctions for the Distribution of Other Drugs

If a student is held accountable for distributing a regulated or illegal drug, then the student will be placed on Disciplinary Probation at a minimum. Additionally, if the student lives on campus, his/her on campus housing contract will be cancelled.

### C. APPLICABILITY TO OTHER MEMBERS OF THE UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY AND CONSEQUENCES FOR VIOLATIONS

Individuals who are not Santa Clara University employees, but who perform work at Santa Clara for its benefit (e.g., independent contractors, temporary employees provided by agencies, visitors engaged in joint -projects at Santa Clara University, and volunteers) are required to comply with this program. Such individuals who unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use controlled substances or unlawfully use, possess, or distribute alcohol in the Santa Clara

University workplace may be barred from working, performing services, of volunteering for or contracting with t Santa Clara University.

### IV. GETTING HELP: Drug and Alcohol Programs

A. Faculty or Staff members who are concerned about substance use, abuse, and rehabilitation are strongly encouraged to contact their physicians, health plan, the Employee Assistance Program, (offered through United Behavioral Health), or the Department of Human Resources, which can refer them to appropriate resources (community or private agencies) that provide complete, confidential substance abuse counseling. Many health insurance plans provide coverage for substance abuse programs to address substance abuse and rehabilitation as well.

**B. Students** are urged to contact the Wellness Center, Counseling and Psychological Services, or Cowell Health Center. The Wellness Center offers **BASICS-- B**rief **A**lcohol **S**creening and Intervention for College Students. This program is appropriate for anyone who uses alcohol and/or other drugs, whether someone is concerned about one's drinking or drug use or just curious to learn about how one's use compares to others. BASICS provides a structured opportunity to assess one's risk, identify potential changes, and helps individuals reduce the risk of developing future problems.

### C. Other outside sources for Faculty, Staff, and Students

# Find a Treatment Center in Your Community (Nationwide)

http://alcoholism.about.com/cs/pro/a/blpro.htm http://www.alcoholscreening.org/getHelp/search.asp

#### **Alcoholics Anonymous**

(408) 374-8511 274 E. Hamilton Ave. Campbell, CA <u>www.aasanjose.org</u>

Al-Anon and Alateen Information (408) 379-1051 \*\*for family and friends of alcoholics www.ncwsa.org/scvafg

#### **Narcotics Anonymous**

(408) 998-4200 Greater San Jose Area Service Committee of Narcotics Anonymous P.O. Box 59114 San Jose CA 95159 www.sjna.org

\*\*PLEASE NOTE: Santa Clara University does not endorse or collaborate with any of the above programs.

V. APPENDICES

### A. University Alcoholic Beverage Policy

The Alcoholic Beverage Policy of Santa Clara University is based on the central and fundamental educational focus of the University to create an environment which fosters learning. The University believes in personal responsibility, moral growth and development, awareness of the communal consequences of personal choices, obligation of citizenship, and responsible decision-making. The University strives to build a community that is welcoming, hospitable, fair, inclusive, rooted in mutual understanding and appreciation, and respectful of diverse perspectives, traditions, and practices. Therefore, it is critical that the members of the University community are committed to the physical and emotional health and well being of those who work, study, or congregate at the University. The policy serves as a guide and applies to all members of the campus community including students, parents, staff, faculty, alumni, and guests of the University.

The Alcoholic Beverage Policy is set in the context of the legal requirements governing the sale, consumption, and distribution of alcoholic beverages and in the context of community expectations for not only upholding the laws but also sharing responsibility for the safety and welfare of other members of the community. The University will not tolerate disregard for the law, or behaviors and practices that counter the education of the whole person, compromise rigorous and imaginative scholarship, inhibit moral and spiritual development, and constrain the University's fundamental values. Consequently, the University does not condone underage drinking and considers intoxication, disorderliness, or offensive behavior deriving from the use of alcoholic beverages to be unacceptable, regardless of a person's age or on-campus or off-campus status.

To cultivate a campus environment consistent with the stated goals and purposes of an educational institution, the University has adopted the following policies and procedures regarding the use of alcoholic beverages.

- 1. The service and consumption of alcoholic beverages on the University campus and at University-sponsored events off-campus shall be done in compliance with applicable municipal, state, and federal laws and regulations, and in accordance with University policies and procedures. All persons on the University campus or at any Universitysponsored event off-campus where alcoholic beverages are being served or consumed are expected to abide by and respect all such laws, regulations, policies, and procedures. (Copies of applicable laws are available from the Office of Student Life.)
- 2. Alcoholic beverages at events held on-campus should be supplied and sold only by the University food service or another designated, licensed agent of the University except in situations covered by No. 5 of this policy. No other individual person or private party shall supply or sell alcoholic beverages at on-campus events or hold the license for the sale of alcoholic beverages on-campus.
- 3. Alcoholic beverages shall not be served or consumed in public areas of the University except at authorized University events. Public areas include all indoor and outdoor spaces on the campus except individual residences and private departmental work areas and offices.

- 4. Alcoholic beverages shall not be served or consumed at any University-sponsored intercollegiate or club sport athletic event or recreational sports activity.
- 5. The sponsorship of events by alcoholic beverage companies or distributors is limited to cash donations, donated products (other than those that directly promote or advertise alcoholic beverages) in support of fundraising or other special events as approved by the appropriate vice president, vice provost, or dean; and materials for University educational programs. The use of donated products for events that are held in Benson Memorial Center must also be approved by the University liaison to the food service contractor.
- 6. Alcoholic beverages may be served at on-campus events sponsored by Universityaffiliated student organizations whose membership is predominantly 21 years of age or older, provided that University operating funds are not used to purchase the alcohol for the event.
- 7. The service of alcoholic beverages at all events on campus shall be in accordance with the Office of Student Life's Alcohol Management Plan, which should be submitted and approved by the Vice Provost for Student Life or designee.
- 8. For student organization-sponsored events off campus that include the service of alcoholic beverages and that require University approval of the contract or agreement with the off-campus facility, an Addendum to Agreement must be signed by the service provider and received by the Vice Provost for Student Life or designee. (Copies of this addendum are available in the Center for Student Leadership.)

Responsible Hosting of Events Where Alcohol Is Served

The event manager for events where alcoholic beverages are served is responsible for implementing the following practices:

- 1. A University-affiliated student organization must identify an event manager responsible for planning and managing the event. The event manager must be present throughout the entire event and must remain alcohol-free prior to and during the event. The event manager and the manager of the facility or his/her designee will work together to ensure that all University event planning requirements are met.
- 2. An appropriate crowd management and security plan shall be developed for the event to monitor excessive drinking, control disorderly behavior and as appropriate, implement the *Responsible Guest Policy*.
- 3. The location used for the event should have controllable points of ingress and egress.
- 4. Alcoholic beverages should not be the primary focus of an event (i.e., progressive drinking party, kegger, happy hour). Alcoholic beverages shall not be used as an inducement to participate in an event.
- 5. Promotions for the event shall not portray symbols of alcoholic beverage consumption (e.g., foaming mugs, cans, glasses, or kegs), shall not include any form of abusive consumption (drinking contests or competition), and shall not emphasize frequency or quantity of alcoholic beverage consumption.
- 6. Promotions for the event should state that "identification will be required".

## B. University Medical Marijuana Policy

Students who qualify under California Proposition 215 to use marijuana for medical reasons are encouraged to inform the Office of Student Life for the purpose of notifying Santa Clara University of their use as authorized within the law. For students who live in university housing, the Office of Student Life informs the appropriate personnel in Residence Life. Santa Clara University does not permit the use of marijuana for any purpose on university property. Students who qualify under California Proposition 215 to use marijuana for medical purposes are not permitted to possess, store, provide, or use the marijuana on University owned or controlled property (including but not limited to residence halls, academic buildings, athletic facilities, and parking lots), or during a University sanctioned activity regardless of the location. Students who fail to follow this policy are in violation of the Student Conduct Code and are subject to disciplinary action.

# C. Health Risks

## 1. Alcohol: Effects

Alcohol consumption causes a number of marked changes in behavior. Even low doses significantly impair the judgment and coordination required to drive a car safely, increasing the likelihood that the driver will be involved in an accident. Low to moderate doses of alcohol also increase the incidence of a variety of aggressive acts, including spouse and child abuse. Moderate to high doses of alcohol cause marked impairments in higher mental functions, severely altering a person's ability to learn and remember information. Very high doses cause respiratory depression and death. If combined with other depressants of the central nervous system, much lower doses of alcohol will produce the effects just described.

Repeated use of alcohol can lead to dependence. Sudden cessation of alcohol intake is likely to produce withdrawal symptoms, including severe anxiety, tremors, hallucinations, and convulsions. Alcohol withdrawal can be life-threatening. Long-term consumption of large quantities of alcohol, particularly when combined with poor nutrition, can also lead to permanent damage to vital organs such as the brain and the liver.

Mothers who drink alcohol during pregnancy may give birth to infants with fetal alcohol syndrome. These infants have irreversible physical abnormalities and mental retardation. In addition, research indicates that children of alcoholic parents are at greater risk than other youngsters of becoming alcoholics.

Source: What Works: Schools Without Drugs, U.S. Dept. of Education (1989)

# 2. DRUGS AND ABUSE/ USES AND EFFECTS

					Dependence	e										
Drugs	CSA Schedules	Trade or Other Names	Medical Uses	Physical	Psycho- logical	Tolerance	Duration (Hours)	Usual Method	Possible Effects	Effects of Overdose	Withdrawal Syndrome					
Narcotics																
Heroin	Substance I	Diamorphine, Horse, Smack, Black tar, <i>Chiva</i> , <i>Negra (black tar)</i>	None in U.S., Analgesic, Antitussive	High	High	Yes	3-4	Injected, snorted, smoked	drowsiness, respiratory	Slow and shallow breathing, clammy skin,	Watery eyes, runny nose, yawning, loss of appetite,					
Morphine	Substance II	MS-Contin, Roxanol, Oramorph SR, MSIR	Analgesic	High	High	Yes	3-12	Oral, injected	constricted pupils, nausea	convulsions, coma, possible death	irritability, tremors, panic, cramps, nausea, chills and sweating					
Hydrocodone		Hydrocodone w/ Acetaminophen, Vicodin, Vicoprofen, Tussionex, Lortab	-	High	High	Yes	3-6	Oral								swearing
Hydro- morphone	Substance II	Dilaudid	Analgesic	High	High	Yes	3-4	Oral, injected								
Oxycodone	Substance II	Roxicet, Oxycodone w/ Acetaminophen, OxyContin, Endocet, Percocet, Percodan	Analgesic	High	High	Yes	3-12	Oral								
Codeine	II,	Acetaminophen, Guaifenesin or Promethazine w/Codeine, Fiorinal, Fioricet or Tylenol w/Codeine		Moderate	Moderate	Yes	3-4	Oral, injected								
Other Narcotics	Substance II, III, IV		Analgesic, Antidiarrheal,	High- Low	High-Low	Yes	Variable	Oral, injected,								

		Methadone, Darvon, Stadol, Talwin, Paregoric, Buprenex	Antitussive					snorted, smoked				
Depressants												
<i>gamma</i> Hydroxybutyric Acid		GHB, Liquid Ecstasy, Liquid X, Sodium Oxybate, Xyrem®	,	Moderate	Moderate	Yes	3-6	Oral	Slurred speech, disorientation, drunken behavior	dilated pupils, weak and	Anxiety, insomnia, tremors, delirium, convulsions,	
Benzodiazepines	Substance IV	Valium, Xanax, Halcion, Ativan, Restoril, Rohypnol (Roofies, R-2), Klonopin			Moderate	Yes	1-8		without odor rapid pulse,	coma, possible	coma, possible	possible death
Other Depressants	Substance I, II, III, IV	Ambien, Sonata, Meprobamate, Chloral Hydrate, Barbiturates, Methaqualone (Quaalude)	Sedative,	Moderate	Moderate	Yes	2-6	Oral				
Stimulants												
Cocaine	Substance II	Coke, Flake, Snow, Crack, <i>Coca, Blanca,</i> <i>Perico, Nieve</i> , Soda	Local anesthetic	Possible	High	Yes	1-2	smoked, injected	Increased alertness, excitation, euphoria, increased	increased body temperature, hallucinations, convulsions, possible death	sleep, irritability, depression,	
1	Substance II	Crank, Ice, Cristal, Krystal Meth, Speed, Adderall, Dexedrine, Desoxyn	Attention deficit/ hyperactivity disorder, narcolepsy, weight control	Possible	High	Yes	2-4	injected, smoked	pulse rate & pos		possible death	disorientation
Methylphenidate	Substance II	Ritalin (Illy's), Concerta, Focalin, Metadate	Attention deficit/ hyperactivity disorder	Possible	High	Yes	2-4	Oral, injected, snorted, smoked				

Other Stimulants	Substance III, IV	Adipex P, Ionamin, Prelu- 2, Didrex, Provigil	Vaso- constriction	Possible	Moderate	Yes	2-4	Oral			
Hallucinogens											
MDMA and Analogs	Substance I	(Ecstasy, XTC, Adam), MDA (Love Drug), MDEA (Eve), MBDB	None	None	Moderate	Yes	4-6		Heightened senses, teeth grinding and dehydration	Increased body temperature, electrolyte imbalance, cardiac arrest	Muscle aches, drowsiness, depression, acne
LSD	Substance I	Acid, Microdot, Sunshine, Boomers	None	None	Unknown	Yes	8-12	Oral	Illusions and hallucinations, altered	(LSD) Longer, more intense "trip" episodes	None
Phencyclidine and Analogs	Substance I, II, III	PCP, Angel Dust, Hog, Loveboat, Ketamine (Special K), PCE, PCPy, TCP	Anesthetic (Ketamine)	Possible	High	Yes	1-12	oral,	perception of time and distance		Drug seeking behavior *Not regulated
Other Hallucinogens	Substance I	Psilocybe mushrooms, Mescaline, Peyote Cactus, Ayahausca, DMT, Dextro- methorphan* (DXM)	None	None	None	Possible	4-8	Oral			
Cannabis											
Marijuana	Substance I	Pot, Grass, Sinsemilla, Blunts, <i>Mota</i> , <i>Yerba</i> , <i>Grifa</i>	None	Unknown	Moderate	Yes	2-4	oral	relaxed paranoia, inhibitions, possible increased psychosis appetite,	paranoia, possible	Occasional reports of insomnia, hyperactivity,
Tetrahydro- cannabinol	Substance I, Product III	THC, Marinol	Antinauseant, Appetite stimulant	Yes	Moderate	Yes	2-4	Smoked, oral		decreased appetite	
Hashish and Hashish Oil	Substance I	Hash, Hash oil	None	Unknown	Moderate	Yes	2-4	Smoked, oral			

Anabolic Steroids											
Testosterone	Substance III	Depo Testosterone, Sustanon, Sten, Cypt	Hypogonadism	Unknown	Unknown	Unknown	14-28 days	Injected	Virilization, edema, testicular atrophy,	Unknown	Possible depression
Other Anabolic Steroids	Substance III	Parabolan, Winstrol, Equipose, Anadrol, Dianabol, Primabolin- Depo, D-Ball	Anemia, Breast cancer	Unknown	Yes	Unknown	Variable	Oral, injected	gyneco- mastia, acne, aggressive behavior		
Inhalants											
Amyl and Butyl Nitrite		Pearls, Poppers, Rush, Locker Room	Angina (Amyl)	Unknown	Unknown	No	1	Inhaled	Flushing, hypotension, headache	Methemo- globinemia	Agitation
Nitrous Oxide		Laughing gas, balloons, Whippets	Anesthetic	Unknown	Low	No	0.5	Inhaled	Impaired memory, slurred speech,	Vomiting, respiratory depression,	· · · ·
Other Inhalants		Adhesives, spray paint, hair spray, dry cleaning fluid, spot remover, lighter fluid	None	Unknown	High	No	0.5-2	Inhaled		loss of consciousness,	
Alcohol		Beer, wine, liquor	None	High	High	Yes	1-3	Oral			

Source: U.S. Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration (June 2004)

# D. Legal Sanctions

The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, and/or use of controlled substances or alcohol is regulated by a number of federal, state and local laws. These laws impose legal sanctions for both misdemeanor and felony convictions. Criminal penalties for convictions can range from fines and probation to denial or revocation of federal benefits (such as student loans) to imprisonment and forfeiture of personal and real property.

The following is a list of some of the laws pertaining to the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or alcohol. Because the laws change from time to time, the information provided herein is illustrative, not exhaustive.

1. Federal Penalties Include:	and Sanctions for Illegal Possession of a Controlled Substance					
Federal Statute 21 U.S.C. 844(a)	<b>Penalty and Sanction Imposed</b> 1st conviction: Up to 1 year imprisonment and fined a minimum of \$1,000, or both.					
	After 1 prior drug conviction: At least 15 days in prison, not to exceed 2 years and fined a minimum of \$2,500, or both.					
	After 2 or more prior drug convictions: At least 90 days in prison, not to exceed 3 years and fined a minimum of \$5,000, or both.					
	Special sentencing provisions for possession of crack cocaine: Mandatory at least 5 years in prison, not to exceed 20 years and fined a minimum of \$5,000, or both, if:					
	(a) 1st conviction and the amount of crack possessed exceeds 5 grams.					
	(b) 2nd crack conviction and the amount of crack possessed exceeds 3 grams.					
	(c) 3rd or subsequent crack conviction and the amount of crack possessed exceeds 1 gram.					
21 U.S.C. 853(a)(2) and 881(a)(7)	Forfeiture of personal and real property used or intended to be used to possess or to facilitate possession of a controlled substance if that offense is punishable by more than 1 year imprisonment.					
21 U.S.C. 881(a)(4)	Forfeiture of vehicles, boats, aircraft or any other conveyance used to transport or conceal a controlled substance.					
21 U.S.C. 844a	Civil fine of up to \$10,000.					

21 U.S.C. 862	Denial of Federal benefits, such as student loans, grants, contracts, and professional and commercial licenses, up to 1 year for first conviction,
18 U.S.C. 922(g)	up to 5 years for second and subsequent convictions. Ineligible to receive or purchase a firearm.

**Miscellaneous** Revocation of certain Federal licenses and benefits, e.g. pilot licenses, public housing tenancy, etc., are vested within the authorities of individual Federal agencies.

### 2. Federal Trafficking Penalties

DRUG/SCHEDULE	QUANTITY	PENALTIES	QUANTITY	PENALTIES		
Cocaine (Schedule II)	500 - 4999 gms mixture	First Offense:	5 kgs or more mixture	First Offense:		
Cocaine Base (Schedule II)	5-49 gms mixture	Not less than 5 yrs, and not more than 40 yrs. If death or	50 gms or more mixture	Not less than 10 yrs, and not more than life. If death or serious		
Fentanyl (Schedule II)	40 - 399 gms mixture	serious injury, not less than 20 or more	400 gms or more mixture	injury, not less than 20 or more than life. Fine		
Fentanyl Analogue (Schedule I)	10 - 99 gms mixture	than life. Fine of not more than \$2 million if an individual, \$5	100 gms or more mixture	of not more than \$4 million if an individual, \$10		
Heroin (Schedule I)	100 - 999 gms mixture	million if not an individual	1 kg or more mixture	million if not an individual.		
LSD (Schedule I)	1 - 9 gms mixture	<b>Second Offense</b> : Not less than 10 yrs, and	10 gms or more mixture	<b>Second Offense</b> : Not less than 20 yrs, and		
Methamphetamine (Schedule II)	5 - 49 gms pure or 50 - 499 gms mixture	not more than life. If death or serious injury, life	50 gms or more pure or 500 gms or more mixture	not more than life. If death or serious injury, life		
PCP (Schedule II)	10 - 99 gms pure or 100 - 999 gms mixture	imprisonment. Fine of not more than \$4 million if an individual, \$10 million if not an individual	100 gm or more pure or 1 kg or more mixture	imprisonment. Fine of not more than \$8 million if an individual, \$20 million if not an individual.		
				2 or More Prior Offenses: Life imprisonment		
		PENALTIES	<u> </u>			
Other Schedule I & II drugs (and any drug product containing Gamma Hydroxybutyric Acid)	Any amount	<b>First Offense</b> : Not more that 20 yrs. If death or serious injury, not less than 20 yrs, or more than Life. Fine \$1 million if an individual, \$5 million if not an individual.				
Flunitrazepam (Schedule IV)						

		million if not an individual					
Other Schedule III drugs	Any amount	<b>First Offense</b> : Not more than 5 years. Fine not more than \$250,000 if an individual, \$1 million if not an individual.					
Flunitrazepam (Schedule IV)	30 to 999 mgs	<b>Second Offense</b> : Not more 10 yrs. Fine not more than \$500,000 if an individual, \$2 million if not an individual					
All other Schedule IV drugs	Any amount	First Offense: Not more than 3 years. Fine not more than					
Flunitrazepam (Schedule IV)	Less than 30 mgs	\$250,000 if an individual, \$1 million if not an individual. Second Offense: Not more than 6 yrs. Fine not more than \$500,000 if an individual, \$2 million if not an individual.					
All Schedule V drugs	Any amount	<b>First Offense:</b> Not more than 1 yr. Fine not more than \$100,000 if an individual, \$250,000 if not an individual.					
		Second Offense: Not more than 2 yrs. Fine not more than \$200,000 if an individual, \$500,000 if not an individual.					

# Federal Trafficking Penalties - Marijuana

DRUG	QUANTITY	1st OFFENSE	2nd OFFENSE
Marijuana	1,000 kg or more mixture; or 1,000 or more plants	<ul> <li>Not less than 10 years, not more than life</li> <li>If death or serious injury, not less than 20 years, not more than life</li> <li>Fine not more than \$4 million if an individual, \$10 million if other than an individual</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Not less than 20 years, not more than life</li> <li>If death or serious injury, mandatory life</li> <li>Fine not more than \$8 million if an individual, \$20 million if other than an individual</li> </ul>
Marijuana	100 kg to 999 kg mixture; or 100 to 999 plants	<ul> <li>Not less than 5 years, not more than 40 years</li> <li>If death or serous injury, not less than 20 years, not more than life</li> <li>Fine not more than \$2 million if an individual, \$5 million if other than an individual</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Not less than 10 years, not more than life</li> <li>If death or serious injury, mandatory life</li> <li>Fine not more than \$4 million if an individual, \$10 million if other than an individual</li> </ul>
Marijuana	more than 10 kgs hashish; 50 to 99 kg mixture more than 1 kg of hashish oil; 50 to 99 plants	<ul> <li>Not more than 20 years</li> <li>If death or serious injury, not less than 20 years, not more than life</li> <li>Fine \$1 million if an individual, \$5 million if other than an individual</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Not more than 30 years</li> <li>If death or seroius injury, mandatory life</li> <li>Fine \$2 million if an individual, \$10 million if other than individual</li> </ul>
Marijuana	1 to 49 plants; less	• Not more than 5 years	Not more than 10 years

	than 50 kg mixture	• Fine not more than \$250,000,	• Fine \$500,000 if an
Hashish	10 kg or less	\$1 million other than individual	individual, \$2 million if other than individual
Hashish Oil	1 kg or less		

# **3.** California Laws Related to Unlawful Manufacture, Distribution, Dispensation, Possession, or Use of Controlled Substances or Alcohol

California Code Cal. Business and Professions Code §§25658; 25602	<b>Unlawful Activity</b> To provide any alcoholic beverage to a person under 21 or to any obviously intoxicated person ();
Cal. Business and Professions Code §25658.5	For any person under age 21 to attempt to purchase alcohol
Cal Business and & Professions Code § 25659.5	Knowingly providing false information in connection with possession of a keg; possession of an unregistered keg
Cal. Business and Professions Code §25661	To have in one's possession or to use false evidence of age and identity to purchase or attempt to purchase alcohol;
Cal. Business and Professions Code §25662	For any person under the age of 21 years who has any alcoholic beverage in his or her possession on any street or highway or in any public place
Cal. Health and Safety Code §§11054, 11055, 11056, 11057, 11058	Unlawful possession or possession for sale of controlled substances
Cal. Health and Safety Codes §§11357, 11358, 11359	To possess, cultivate, sell or possess for sale marijuana
Cal. Health and Safety Code §11361	To transport, sell, or distribute marijuana to a minor or to use a minor to transport, sell, or distribute marijuana;
Cal. Health and Safety Code §11550	To use or be under the influence of a controlled substance;
Cal. Penal Code §647 (f)	To be under the influence of alcohol in a public place and unable to exercise care for one's own safety or that of others

Cal. Vehicle Code §23140	For any person under the age of 21 to operate a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol level of .05% or higher
Cal. Vehicle Code §23152	To operate a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or other intoxicants or with a blood alcohol level of .08% or higher
Cal. Vehicle Code §§23223; 23224	To have an open container of alcohol in a motor vehicle and for persons under 21 to drive a vehicle carrying alcohol or to possess alcohol while in a motor vehicle;
Current as of 11/7/2011	

19